

Australia Alopecia Areata Foundation

WIGS



Table of Contents:

What Wig is best for you!	3
Consider the following points:	3
General Information	4
Human Hair Wigs	4
Synthetic Wigs	4
Blended Wigs	4
Colour and style	5
Oval Face	5
Round Face	5
Square Face	5
Heart-Shaped Face	5
Oblong Face	5
Size	6
Parting	6
Wigs FAQs	
What sort of Human hair is used for the 'hair' part of a wig?	6
What man-made fibres are used for the 'hair' part of a wig?	6
What different caps are available?	6
Can you explain the terms "Standard, Monofilament or Vacuum" cap base?	
Should I have a Processed or Unprocessed human hair Wig?	7
Are there products for covering small patches of hair loss?	8
How does the wig stay on my head?	8
How do I care for my wig?	8
Wig stand	10
Financial Assistance	11
What financial assistance is available when buying a wig?	11
Can I claim the cost of my wig with my end of year tax?	11
State Subsidies	11
Wig Subsidy New South Wales	11
Wig Subsidy South Australia	12
Wig Subsidy Victoria	12
AAAF Wigs For Kids	13
Variety Children's Charity	13
Have fun!	14



What Wig is best for you!

There are different types of wigs and hair pieces available. There are full lace wigs, front lace wigs, suction wigs, integration pieces and extensions.

Buying a wig for the first time can be daunting. It can also be a major financial investment, so to minimise the risk of getting something you're not happy with, here's a guide to choosing the wig that's just right for you!

Consider the following points:

- If you are a first-time wig wearer try to choose a style not that different from your own original hairstyle. A big change in style or colour can be difficult to adjust to all at once. Understand when purchasing a wig that the look will never be the same as having your own hair. Wigs will always have more hair even with thinning. This is necessary as there will be some loss over time. If you decide to buy your wig in person from a wig salon, find one with a private fitting room so you're more comfortable. Bring friends or family along for support.
- If you buy online, you can try on your wigs in the privacy of your home but remember the
 return policy. Also if you buy online the wigs sent to you will be flat because of the
 packaging. They will require washing to "bounce back" to their style. If you have a very
 curly one in the package then the curl may relax after washing. DO NOT WASH THE WIG IF
 YOU ARE GOING TO RETURN IT.
- You will probably feel you look very odd (even though you don't) in the first few wigs you try
 on especially if you try a new style/colour or if you have not seen yourself with hair for a
 while.
- You could try a style similar to your own so it's easier to get used to. Persevere until you find one you like
- Each time, make sure you put the wig on properly it is quite easy to put a wig on backwards (the tapes to adjust the size will be at the back)
- At home, take care of your wig while not wearing it. Use a wig stand to preserve the shape of the wig
- Understand the financial impact
- Consider your lifestyle. What does your day involve? Will you be wearing your wig everyday?
 Be sure to keep your typical daily or weekly activities in mind when you try different wigs.
 Remember synthetic wigs are lighter and easier to manage if you're tired or busy and don't forget the base, a vacuum base allows for the active you!



General Information

The first decision you will have to make is whether you go for a wig made out of human hair or one made out of synthetic hair or a wig that combines both. Here's a brief overview of the advantages and disadvantages of both.

Human Hair Wigs

Advantages

- look and feel more natural
- you can style them how you like
- usable for up to one year on average
- can be exposed to heat without damaging
- Can be purchased un-styled and have them styled to suit you

Disadvantages

- more expensive than synthetic hair
- may require restyling each time they are washed
- requires shampooing, conditioning and drying up to 1 hour
- loses colour and darker colours can turn slightly reddish

Synthetic Wigs

Advantages

- pre-styled, so no need for self-styling (stays in shape after washing)
- less expensive than human hair
- easier to care for
- dries guicker
- must be washed in cold soapy water
- is colour-fast so will not fade in the sun
- can be purchased quickly, delivered quickly

Disadvantages

- get damaged when exposed to heat e.g. must be careful of the heat when opening oven doors as the heat can frizzle the wig hair
- you can't change the style or colour
- can have a slightly false shine
- doesn't last as long as a human hair wia
- cannot use as wide a variety of products on synthetic hair special shampoo and conditioner for synthetic hair must be used

Blended Wigs

Blends of human hair and synthetic fibre may also be available, but while these wigs may provide some of the advantages of both types (natural feel of the human hair and style keeping of the synthetics), they can be more difficult to maintain or repair.



Colour and style

Buying a wig means you can choose whatever colour and style you like! You could go for the colour of hair that you used to have or you could decide that you want to try something new. A good wig salon should have a trained hairdresser who will advise you on colour as well as style. Some wig salons have staff that are qualified hairdressers but not the facilities for cutting and styling your wig. If you go for an uncut wig, you can have a real 'salon experience' where the hairdresser discusses style and colour with you and then washes, cuts and blow-dries your new hair! Take your time choosing and don't feel obliged to buy a wig on your first visit. If you want to try out different styles and colour 'anonymously' without having to make an appointment you could also order via one of the many websites to try the wigs on in the comfort of your own home. Any reputable supplier will have a returns policy but make sure you read it carefully as the return time frame can be short and a full refund may not be part of their return policy.

Be aware that some wig providers do not offer a cutting service so you may have to find a hairdresser who is qualified in cutting wigs. Not all hairdressers are qualified at cutting wigs even though they have learnt their cutting skills on wigs in Trade School. Remember – once cut the hair will not grow back. It is always better to start off with the style a little longer and then have it cut a couple of centimetres at a time until you are happy with the length/style.

Oval Face

If you have an oval face shape then you are fortunate as an oval shape is very versatile and will suit almost any wig style. Long, short, straight or curly styles will all look quite natural.

Round Face

If you have a round face, look for styles that are a little longer than your face. Styles with soft curls and layers will also help reduce the rounded look of the face.

Square Face

If you have a square face shape styles with sweeping fringes and medium length layers that sit close to the face will reduce the square or angular look.

Heart-Shaped Face

If you have a heart shaped face, look for styles that are a little fuller around the jaw line with a soft fringe or no fringe at all.

Oblong Face

If you have an oblong face shapes need to look for styles that have a wave or curl around the cheek and/or jaw line giving width to your face.



Size

Most wigs are made to a standard size, they then have adjustable straps, either Velcro or slides, to ensure the best fit. If your head size is quite a bit smaller or larger than average you will have less choice and might prefer to have a custom-made wig. If you would like advice on your head size then contact your wig supplier who will be able to advise.

Parting

Most human hair wigs and some synthetic – wefted or net foundation – have a top section made out of 'monofilament' which is a skin like material. This makes the parting look much more realistic, as it gives the appearance of growing hair.

Wigs FAQs

What sort of Human hair is used for the 'hair' part of a wig?

Human hair wigs are made of different types of hair. European and Asian are the most common. European hair is a popular form of hair. It has a straight and soft texture. European hair is finer and is the most natural looking hair; it also costs the most due to its lighter colours, durability and smaller donation pool.

Asian hair by its nature is thick, with a stiff texture, straight and usually very dark in colour. It is great for straight black wigs, varying the colour subject the hair to a complicated process of a pigmentation removal, the hair looses its natural shine and resilience and will go through several bleaching steps and other chemical treatments. The cost is cheaper and there is a high donation pool.

What man-made fibres are used for the 'hair' part of a wig?

The most common man-made fibre is Modacrylic. This is a polymer fibre which is a stretched tube that is soft, strong, resilient, and dimensionally stable filled with colour.

They can be easily dyed, show good press and shape retention, and are quick to dry. They have outstanding resistance to chemicals and solvents, are not attacked by moths or mildew, and are non allergenic.

What different caps are available?

Wefted foundations consist of a cap made out of 'wefts' which are rows of hair stitched onto strips of material, and are machine-made. As they are machine-made, wefted foundation wigs are usually less expensive than hand-knotted net foundation wigs and they generally come in pre-cut styles so are 'ready-to-wear'.

Net foundations consist of a cap made out of mesh into which each hair is knotted by hand. Net foundation wigs can also come pre-cut but more often you choose just the length and colour of the wig and then a hairdresser (usually at the place where you buy the wig and at extra cost) cuts it to your choice of style.



Hand Tied: This method involves the hair being hand tied to a sheer base such as a lace. This style is very comfortable to wear as the lace is soft on the skin and the cap will mould itself to the wearer's head. The wigs are quite light and like the Full Mono Top wig is free styling, so it can look very natural. However, its delicate base requires more care to maintain.

Lace Front: As the name suggests the hair in the crown and hairline area is attached to a fine lace. This style requires some knowledge or a professional to cut the lace to fit the wearer. The lace area is often attached using strong glue. This method is free styling and in the crown area like the Full Mono Top and Hand Tied wigs however the delicate nature of the lace makes it more difficult to maintain. This method is also more expensive due to the labour involved in its construction and is not as durable as other methods.

Top pieces: Custom designed top pieces are ideal for the attainment to conceal thinning hair in the crown area as well as adding extra volume to your own existing hair. Perfect for female pattern balding, Alopecia Areata and low crown loss. This hair addition allows added hair to particular areas that hair loss is present if a full wig is not needed. It is usually attached with clips and fits securely onto you head.

Can you explain the terms "Standard, Monofilament or Vacuum" cap base?

Standard caps are the simplest cap type produced and therefore, the least expensive. Hair is stitched into a string mesh and many of the standard-cap wigs have a lace layer at the crown. **Monofilament bases** make the wig look as if it were growing from your own head. The individual grafts of hair are hand-placed onto the thin material at the crown and the special construction on their top and front makes the scalp look as if it were natural. The hair can be parted and brushed in any direction. The top portion of the cap is also designed to allow excellent ventilation. Thus, they are the most comfortable and natural-looking type.

Vacuum or Suction bases. They have a non-irritating silicone base that is very comfortable and they are made by a plaster mould of the head, so as to fit perfectly - a vacuum fit, without the aid of tape or glue. Hair is implanted into the silicone base one hair at a time.

There are "hard" vacuums and "soft" vacuums on the market. The hard vacuums are made from either an inert hard plastic or fibreglass. These can be useful for those persons who might want to wear them during sports like rugby, soccer, football. They have a "helmet-type" feel to them. The "soft" vacuums are generally considered more comfortable as they are flexible and usually made of a medical grade silicone and feel like a real scalp.

Should I have a Processed or Unprocessed human hair Wig?

When it comes to human hair wigs, the buyer has two important choices to make regarding the type of human hair used.

The term "processed" refers to human hair that undergoes one or more chemical processes in order to change its appearance. Indian, Indonesian or Chinese hair is most commonly used, due to its availability and low cost. This type of hair - black, coarse and straight, must be bleached, dyed and permed, then decuticalised.

Unprocessed human hair is the finest quality hair, since it doesn't require any chemical processing. Naturally, it is the most expensive, too. It is usually of European origin and its life expectancy is much longer.

How can I tell the difference between a machine and a handmade wig? What are the advantages of each?

Machine wefted wigs are made on a wefted foundation, hand knotted wigs are made on a light net



foundation. The advantages of machine wefted wigs are the huge selection of styles and colours available.

How can the different types of wigs be cared for, washed and styled?

All good wigs should come with washing instructions. Fibre wigs are left to dry naturally and human hair wigs need washing like your own hair and depending on the cut may need to be styled to achieve the desired effect.

Are there products for covering small patches of hair loss?

Yes, COURVe masking lotion and Mane (www.maneaustralia.com)are both products that colour the scalp and can disguise hair loss. Colour sticks that are designed to colour grey can also be used. Check with Wig providers as many also can provide small hair pieces or hair additions can be custom made for these areas.

How does the wig stay on my head?

Most wigs have the adjustable straps to ensure a snug fit. If you still have some of your hair, you can use special hair clips sown into the wig which will keep your wig in place. If you have no hair, you can use special double-sided tape which you stick on small plastic-coated parts of your wig (usually one at the front and one at each side). Not all wigs have the plastic-coated parts, some bases are just fabric. Additionally, some wigs have an elasticised part all around the cap which holds the wig in place. If you use double-sided tape and you want to make extra sure that your wig stays on, clean your head and the plastic-coated parts of your wig with soap to ensure that both are absolutely grease free. Vacuum wigs cater for more adventurous activities, including swimming and contact sports.

Individual Handmade Wigs

Wigs which are made to fit the individual usually have a special 'lace' section around the edge of the whole wig for attaching the double-sided tape. This secures the wig firmly to the scalp. Special care must be taken when removing the tape so as not to damage any edges of the 'lace' on the wig. The 'lace' is very fine and made to look as if the hair is growing out the scalp showing no thick wig line. If any of the lace starts to tear see your Wig Professional to repair the damage.

How do I care for my wig?

Wigs do not need to be washed everyday. Frequency can vary from 1 week to 4 weeks depending on what activities you are involved in.

To extend the lifespan of your wig, it is worth washing it carefully. Rough handling means that your wig will lose hair more easily, leaving you with bald patches in your wig too! Ideally, you should have the following things when you wash your wig: a largish bowl (like a washing up bowl) or basin, specialized wig shampoo or shampoo for bleached/highlighted hair, lots of specialized conditioner or conditioner for dry hair or bleached/highlighted hair, a wide toothed comb or wig brush for detangling the hair, a wig stand and a towel or large chamois to roll the wet wig in.

Before you wash your wig, brush it carefully from tip to root to ensure it's free of knots. Fill the bowl with cold water for Synthetic and Combination wigs and warm (not hot) water for Human Hair wigs, put some shampoo in the water and place the wig into it. Leave the wig to soak for five minutes or so. This allows any residue to come loose of the hair. Gently take the wig out of the bowl and holding it on the top in the middle (usually where the part is) with your thumb on top and the other



fingers underneath rinse it under running water. Take care to rinse the hair in the direction from roots to ends to avoid tangling. Put the shampoo onto the hair, carefully spreading it all over by running your finger carefully from the roots to the ends working the shampoo in. Don't rub/massage the shampoo into the wig as this will cause it to tangle and will put undue stress on the knotting/sewing at the crown later when trying to detangle the hair. Rinse it again as before. Then put the conditioner on the hair using two or three times the amount that you would use for hair growing on your head. Work through the wig the same as with the shampoo. Leave the conditioner in for five to 10 min. Holding the wig between the fingers rinse well making sure no traces of the conditioner are left in the hair. Gently place the wig onto a fresh towel/chamois and gently roll/blot to allow the towel/chamois to absorb any excess water. After towelling you can hold the wig as before and give it a few shakes over a bath tub or in a shower alcove to get rid of excess water.

Place the wig on your foam wig stand and attach it to the stand with pins. Carefully comb the hair with the detangling comb, making sure that you only touch the hair not the base of the wig. Take extra care around the root area as the knots expand when wet. Once the hair has dried a little you can style it with your usual brushes/combs and a hairdryer. The great thing about human hair wigs is that you can style it any way you want and use any hair product you want – no need to get gloomy about all the hair care product ads on telly! If you want to use them, you can use them all. Maybe the easiest way of styling the hair on your wig is to let it dry overnight on big rollers. The rollers give the hair more volume and turn the end of the hair in. All you need to do is to take the rollers out of the dry hair in the morning, brush it through and you're ready to go. If you are not styling your wig then use a travelling wig stand (the type that fold flat not the inflatable ones) and place your wig on that for drying. The air circulates much better and enables the base to dry faster especially in the wefted base wigs. During the colder weather wigs will take longer to dry so give yourself time.

If the hair on your wig gets lighter with time and maybe gets a slight reddish tinge to it, the hair can be dyed back to the colour you want. Professional advice is always recommended as the hair has been heavily processed already colouring can be tricky. Care must be taken with home dyeing kits as it is quite easy to get colour on the base of the wig but it won't wash out. It is better to take the wig to a Wig Professional to dye the wig for you. They can advise you on colour but a shade lighter than the colour you want to get should be used, as the wig hair is quite dry and absorbs colour much more easily than hair growing from a head. Wigs should never be coloured lighter.

Human Hair wigs need to be washed and conditioned regularly. The average is between seven and 10 days, but some people find that they need to wash it more regularly, especially if they play sports. One advantage of wearing a wig is that you only need to style your hair when you wash it, on the following days you can just take it off the wig stand and you're ready to go!

Incidentally, even if you don't have any hair on your head, it is important that you wash your scalp with shampoo whenever you have a shower or bath. The scalp produces sebum whether or not there is hair growing on your head. The base of the wig will absorb the sebum and pass it on to the hair on your wig, making your hair look greasy. Keeping your scalp as grease free as possible is well worth it, as it means you have to wash your wig less often.



Wig stand

Using a wig stand means that the base of your wig as well as the style of your hair will stay in shape. Also, it's almost impossible to style a wig if it's not attached to a head! The most popular is a 'poly head' for which you can also get a suction cap base that you can attach to any flat clean surface. A more costly but also more durable option is to get a head made out of cork which you can attach to any table or chair. Travel wig stands are available which are either made from 2 pieces of plastic which interlock to form the head but fold flat for travel or inflatable ones made with a suede fabric.



Financial Assistance

What financial assistance is available when buying a wig?

If you have a referral from your GP or a dermatologist you may get some help from your state disability organisation. Please see the Wigs page for more details.

Health Funds also provide a rebate and these vary on the type of coverage undertaken.

Can I claim the cost of my wig with my end of year tax?

Please check with your Tax Advisor but you should be able to add the cost of your wig to your medical claims under the Taxation Ruling TR93/34

Below are some sections quoted from the ATO website relating to the Income Tax: Medical Expense Rebate (Taxation Ruling TR93/34).

Section 159P allows a rebate for net medical expenses exceeding \$1,000. Net medical expenses includes: payments for a 'medical or surgical appliance' prescribed by a legally qualified medical practitioner.

A 'medical or surgical appliance' for the purposes of paragraph (f) of the definition of 'medical expenses' in subsection 159P (4) is an instrument, apparatus or device which is:

- a) Manufactured as; or
- b) Distributed as; or
- c) Generally recognised to be an aid to the function or capacity of a person with a disability or illness.

Examples of a 'medical or surgical appliance' include:

(m) Medical or surgical wigs for use by a person which is necessitated by loss of hair through sickness or disease (other than naturally occurring baldness) or the effects of the treatment of sickness or disease

You can also apply for a private ruling but be aware that this process takes 28 days. https://www.ato.gov.au/General/ATO-advice-and-guidance/ATO-advice-products-(rulings)/Private-rulings/Applying-for-a-private-ruling/#Howtoapplyforaprivateruling

State Subsidies

Does the government give subsidies for wigs?" The answer is Yes they do! But it's different from state to state and some states do not offer this service.

Wig Subsidy New South Wales

EnableNSW is a division of Health Support Services, NSW Health which was established to administer the NSW Health support programs for people with disability, including the Program of Appliances for Disabled People (PADP) which previously supplied wig subsidies.

The role of PADP is to assist eligible residents of NSW who have a permanent or long-term disability to live and participate in their community by providing appropriate equipment, aids, appliances and prosthesis- HUMAN HAIR WIGS ONLY



https://www.enable.health.nsw.gov.au/ data/assets/pdf file/0020/263108/Wig-Funding-Criteria.pdf

Our advice is that you contact the NSW Department of Health directly as the website doesn't seem to provide specific information:

Street address: 73 Miller Street North Sydney NSW 2060 Australia Postal address: Locked Mail Bag 961 North Sydney NSW 2059 Australia

Telephone:

within Australia 02 9391 9000 outside Australia 61 2 9391 9000

Fax: within Australia 02 9391 9101

Wig Subsidy South Australia

The Department for Families and Communities (DFC) Equipment Program does provide wigs for eligible clients. Ph: 1300295 786

There are three pathways for the Equipment program - the client will need to be a client of either:

- 1. Disability SA
- 2. Domiciliary Care SA or
- 3. Metropolitan Equipment Scheme (MES).

AAAF is still trying to figure out if there is any help for children

As more information comes to light about wig subsidies, wig rebates, etc we will post more information - Stay tuned!

Wig Subsidy Victoria

SWEP is a program of grants funded by the Department of Human Services and administered by Ballarat Health Services. Ballarat Health Services was appointed as the state-wide administrator of the aids and equipment program in August 2010 following a competitive selection process. The State-wide equipment program provides people who have a permanent or long-term disability with subsidised aids, equipment and vehicle and home modifications.

The benefits available are;



Two basic synthetic wigs (or equivalent contribution towards human hair wig, or more expensive synthetic wig up to the subsidy cost) \$240 per 2 years

One human hair wig (child 16 years and under) \$600 per wig

You will need to fill in an application form and have a letter from your GP to say that you are have permanent loss of hair as a result of disease or disability.

If you have previously used the A&EP, your records will be transferred to SWEP automatically and the procedure to obtain the subsidy remains the same.

You can download an application form from the SWEP website

https://swep.bhs.org.au/aids-and-equipment.php

Contact Information for SWEP

Hours of Operation 8.30am to 5.00pm - Monday to Friday

Telephone 1300 747 937 or 03 5333 8100

Fax 03 5333 8111

Postal Address PO Box 577 Ballarat Vic 3353

AAAF Wigs For Kids

AAAF established the Wig for Kids Program to ensure that children wanting to wear a wig get the information, service and support needed.

You can download an application form from AAAF website.

https://aaaf.org.au/wp-content/uploads/2017/03/AAAF-Wigs for Kids Application-2017.pdf

Variety Children's Charity

Variety the Children's Charity provide a wig grant for children under 18 throughout Australia.

Details can be found on their web site.

 $\frac{https://www.grantrequest.com/Login.aspx?ReturnUrl=\%2fapplication.aspx\%3fSA\%3dSNA\%26FID\%3d35029\%26sid\%3d5904\&SA=SNA\&FID=35029\&sid=5904$



Have fun!

Take this opportunity to have the hair you always wanted. Try on as many styles as you like. Some wig salons may provide a customising service that will ensure you get the look you want: confident and stylish.

If you can afford it why not eventually have 2 wigs — one for everyday wear and another wig in a different style colour for special occasions. It saves a lot of time and frustration in having to refresh your wig when having to go out on short notice. If wearing a human hair wig every day then a synthetic one is great as a fun/special occasion one as these are usually found in up to the minute styles. Enjoy!